

Buckinghamshire County Council Select Committee

Finance. Performance and Resources

Minutes

FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCES SELECT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND RESOURCES SELECT COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 3 MAY 2016, IN MEZZANINE ROOM 2, COUNTY HALL, AYLESBURY, COMMENCING AT 10.05 AM AND CONCLUDING AT 12.30 PM.

This meeting was webcast. To review the detailed discussions that took place please see the webcast which can be found at: http://www.buckscc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
The webcasts are retained on this website for 6 months. Recordings of any previous meetings beyond this can be requested (contact: democracy@buckscc.gov.uk)

MEMBERS PRESENT

Mr W Bendyshe-Brown, Mr W Chapple OBE (Vice-Chairman), Mr D Martin, Mr B Roberts (Chairman), Mr D Shakespeare OBE and Mr A Stevens

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

Mr C Adams, Mr J Chilver, Mr R Drew, Mr N Henstock, Mr J Huskinson, Ms F Mills, Dr J Nethercoat, Ms J West and Mrs E Wheaton

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP

Apologies were received from Mr Steven Lambert.

Ms Ruth Vigor-Hedderly had replaced Mr David Schofield on the Committee.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Mr Bill Chapple declared an interest in item 7 as he was a Trustee of Green Park.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 8 March 2016 were agreed as a correct record.





4 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were no public questions.

5 CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chairman reported that the recommendations which were accepted as part of the Budget Scrutiny process this year were currently being worked on and developed by the Service Areas.

6 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT SHARED SERVICE WITH HARROW

[Mr Chris Adams joined the meeting at 10.25am]

The Chairman welcomed Mr John Chilver, Cabinet Member for Resources and Ms Frances Mills, Head of People and Organisational Development.

The following main points were made during their presentation and the discussion:

- The OD Shared Service started in March 2015 and continued to deliver around £50k of savings. Buckinghamshire County Council entered into an inter-authority agreement with Harrow Council to deliver Organisational Development services across the two authorities.
- As a result of restructuring their services, Harrow did not have an OD department so the shared service meant that both authorities could maintain personnel both in Buckinghamshire and in Harrow. The feedback from senior managers at Harrow had been very positive.
- The OD team was reported as being a high performing team as demonstrated by its recent success in winning the contract to provide OD services to the London Borough of Waltham Forest. The Council's Commercial team provided advice to the OD team in putting together the winning bid.
- Ms Mills described how the officers spent time at Harrow before the contract started to understand the needs of the authority and build relationships with the key stakeholders. She felt that the team had gone the "extra mile" to establish their reputation and to demonstrate a "can do" approach from the outset.
- Both authorities had learnt from each other and a good platform for future shared services with Harrow had been established.
- A Member asked whether the savings made through the shared service represented value for money as £50k, whilst very welcomed savings, were not significant in terms of the larger financial challenges facing the Council. The Cabinet Member responded by saying that the £50k did not include additional income (ie. the money being made through the new contract with Waltham Forest). He went on to say that the savings in the MTP for the whole shared service project (OD, Legal and HR) were £1m.
- A Member asked for a report at a future meeting detailing the savings and the benefits around the shared service project.

ACTION: Cabinet Member for Resources

- The Cabinet Member confirmed that the Shared Legal Service and Shared HR Service would be commencing in June with each having its own separate inter-authority agreement. A Deputy Monitoring Officer would be retained at Buckinghamshire County Council.
- A Member asked if the Business Cases for each Shared Service was available. Ms Mills confirmed that the OD business case was available.

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member and Ms Mills for their time and invited them to a future meeting with officers from the other Shared Services so that an in-depth review of all the projects could be undertaken.

SEE PAPERS AND WEBCAST FOR FULL CONTENT

7 CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME FOR GREEN PARK

This item was moved into the exempt session due to the commercially sensitive information which was circulated to Committee Members in advance of the meeting.

8 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

Members noted the work programme and two additional items which would be discussed at the June meeting – the Children's Services budget savings monitoring and Education & Skills budget savings monitoring.

9 INQUIRY SCOPE

Committee Members discussed and agreed the Income Generation scope. The Inquiry would commence in June with evidence sessions taking place throughout June and July.

[Mr C Adams left the meeting at 10.36am]

10 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday 28 June 2016 at 10am in Mezzanine Room 2, County Hall, Aylesbury.

11 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded for the following item which is exempt by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act 1972 because it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

(i) CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME FOR GREEN PARK

This item was moved into the exempt session due to the commercially sensitive information which was circulated to Committee Members in advance of the meeting.

[Mr B Chapple took no part in this item as he had declared an interest]

12 AGRICULTURAL ESTATES

Committee Members received the report from the Estates Officer and asked a number of questions about the recent review of the Council's Agricultural Estates review.